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Independent Auditors’ Report
To the Members of
Rapipay Fintech Private Limited
Report on the audit of the Financial Statements
We have audited the financial statements of Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income),
Statement of changes in equity and the statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter
referred to as “the financial statements”).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give
a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act read
with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) other accounting principles
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and its loss, changes in
equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the
Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code
of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act, and the Rules thereunder, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion on the financial statements.
Emphasis of Matter
1. We draw your attention to Note 35 to the financial statements which explains the uncertainties and the
management’s assessment of the financial impact due to the lock-downs and other restrictions and
conditions related to the Covid-19 pandemic situation, for which a definitive assessment of the impact in the
subsequent period is highly dependent upon circumstances as they evolve. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of this matter.

2. We draw your attention to Note 36 to the financial statements, which indicates that the Company’s Board
has approved the amalgamation of the Company with Rapipay Fintech Holding Private Limited. The
Company has made an application with the National Company Law Tribunal (‘NCLT’), New Delhi to seek
approval with respect to the proposed merger and scheme of amalgamation, the former being the surviving
Company. Approval was yet to be received from the NCLT. Our opinion is not modified in respect of this
matter.
Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ Report, including Annexures to Board’s Report, but does not
include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.
Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
The other information is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors’ report. When we read
the other information, if we conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate
the matter to those charged with governance.
Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to
the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of
the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and
fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.
 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.
 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.
Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes it
probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in

(i)

planning the scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and

(ii)

to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.
Other Matter
The comparative financial information of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the transition date
opening balance sheet as at April 1, 2018 included in these financial statements, are based on the previously issued
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006
audited by the predecessor auditor (M/s Kumar Lalit & Co.) whose report for the year ended March 31, 2019 and
March 31, 2018 dated June 27, 2019 and June 29, 2018 respectively expressed an unmodified audit opinion on
those financial statements, as adjusted for the differences in the accounting principles adopted by the Company on
transition to the Ind AS, which have been audited by us. Our report is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure ‘I’ a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
2. As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit we report that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit.
(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.
(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Statement of

Changes in Equity and the Statement of Cash Flow dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books
of account.
(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
(e) On the basis of written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 and taken on record
by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as
a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the Act.
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and
the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in Annexure ‘II’.
(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance with the provisions of
section 197 of the Act.
(h) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:
i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its financial
statements – Refer Note 27 to the financial statements;
ii. The Company did not have any long term contracts including any derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses;
iii.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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Annexure ’I’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date)
1)

In respect of its fixed assets:
(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets.
(b) As informed, fixed assets have been physically verified by the management in a phased periodical
manner which in our opinion is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and nature of
its assets. No material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.
(c) Based upon the audit procedure performed and according to the records of the Company, the title
deeds of all the immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

2)

In respect of its inventories:
(a) The management has physically verified the inventories. In our opinion, the frequency of verification
is reasonable.
(b) The discrepancies noticed on verification between the physical stocks and the book records were not
material and such discrepancies have been properly dealt with in the books of accounts.

3)

As informed, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the Act for
the financial year 2019-2020, and accordingly clauses (a), (b) and (c) of para (iii) of the order are not
applicable to the Company.

4)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not either
directly or indirectly, granted any loan to any of its directors or to any other person in whom the director
is interested, in accordance with the provisions of section 185 of the Act and the Company has not made
investments through more than two layers of investment companies in accordance with the provisions of
section 186 of the Act. Accordingly, provisions stated in paragraph 3(iv) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company.

5)

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposit from the public during the year in terms of the provisions of section 73 to 76 of the
Act or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

6)

The provisions of sub-section (1) of section 148 of the Act are not applicable to the Company as the
Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records for any of the products of
the Company. Accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph 3 (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

7)

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has generally been regular
in depositing with appropriate authorities undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Custom Duty, Cess and other
material statutory dues applicable to it. According to the information and explanations given to us, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues were outstanding as at March 31, 2020
for a period of more than six months from the date they become payable.
(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end,
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

8)

The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution, banks, government or
debenture holders during the year. Accordingly, the provision stated in paragraph 3(viii) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

9)

Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations given by the
management, the company did not raise money by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including
debt instruments) and term Loans during the year. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3 (ix) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

10)

During the course of our audit, examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the information and
explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees.

11)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the
requisite approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

12)

In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi company. Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the Order
are not applicable to the Company.

13)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act

where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.
14)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of
the Company, the Company has made private placement of equity shares during the year and the
requirements of Section 42 of the Act have been complied with. The Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of fully or partly convertible debentures. The amount raised has
been used for the purposes for which they were raised.

15)

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, we report that the Company has not entered into any non- cash transaction
with directors or persons connected with him.

16)

In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45 IA of the Reserve Bank of
India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No: 001035N/N500050
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Annexure ’II’ to the Independent Auditors’ Report
(Referred to in Paragraph 2(f) under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of
even date)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under clause (i) of sub section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (“the
Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and prescribed under
section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both
applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide
reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For B R Maheswari & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
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RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
Particulars
I

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Intangibles under development
Right of use assets
Financial assets
(i) Other financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

Note

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

As at
April 01, 2018

3
4
4
4A

262.04
267.79
89.80
319.57

3.05
176.54
88.71
4.56

0.42
137.63
64.15
32.10

7
8
10

16.76
485.67
7.70
1,449.33

5.61
147.96
426.43

6.93
75.15
316.38

11

11.56

5.61

5
12
13
6
7
9
10

231.25
3,513.40
5.00
3.09
63.81
195.10
95.34
4,118.55
5,567.88

5.73
609.43
0.00
0.00
44.68
9.79
18.56
693.80
1,120.23

296.61
19.11
0.00
134.87
28.57
6.18
15.34
500.68
817.06

II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity

14
15

3,320.00
(1,394.19)
1,925.81

1,135.00
(367.94)
767.06

610.00
(67.16)
542.84

LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provision
(c) Other non-current liabilities

16
18
19
20

144.76
5.32
0.16
150.24

47.42
4.95
0.10
52.47

(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(iv) Advances
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provision
(c) Other current liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Significant accoutning polices

248.80
15.01
263.81

-

17

-

-

17

56.54

67.35

162.72

18
19
20

3,128.94
3.66
189.12
3,378.26
5,567.88

128.85
0.98
5.75
202.93
1,120.23

54.72
4.31
221.75
817.06

-

2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For B.R.Maheswari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001035N/N500050
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For and on behalf of the board for Rapipay Fintech Private limited
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RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
Particulars
INCOME
i Revenue from operations
ii Other income
(I) Total income (I)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

Note

21
22

Expenses :
Cost of materials consumed
23
Employee benefit expense
24
Finance costs
25
Depreciation and amortisation expense
3 & 4A
Other expenses
26
Total expenses (II)
Loss before exceptional items and tax (I - II)
Exceptional items
Loss before tax (III - IV )
Tax expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax (Credit)
MAT credit
(VII) Loss for the period (V-VI)
(VIII) Other comprehensive income
(i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss
Other comprehensive income
i
ii
iii
iv
v
(II)
(III)
(IV)
(V)
(VI)

(IX) Total comprehensive income for the period (VII + VIII)
(X) Earnings per equity share
Basic Earning Per Share (EPS)
Diluted Earning Per Share (DEPS)
As per our report of even date
For B.R.Maheswari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001035N/N500050
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For the year ended
March 31, 2019

792.75
1.53
794.28

30.02
43.66
73.68

35.75
1,125.37
20.92
137.09
841.40
2,160.53
(1,366.25)
(1,366.25)

3.94
112.43
4.68
53.57
272.65
447.27
(373.59)
(373.59)

(338.31)
(1,027.94)

(72.81)
(300.78)

2.29
(0.60)

-

1.69

-

(1,026.25)

(300.78)

(5.65)
(5.65)

(4.91)
(4.91)

For and on behalf of the board for Rapipay Fintech Private limited
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RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of Cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
Particulars

Year ended 31 March 2020

A) CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit before tax
Adjustment for:
Depreciation
Interest expense
Interest income
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for doubtful debts

Year ended 31 March 2019

(1,366.25)

(373.59)

137.09
20.92
(1.46)
14.66
13.12

53.57
4.68
(0.54)
6.30
162.72

(1,181.92)

(146.86)

(10.81)
3,230.01
183.21
(238.64)
(41.36)
(76.78)
(5.95)
(367.77)

(95.37)
67.69
1.50
263.03
(14.79)
(3.22)
(5.61)
-

1,489.99
(185.31)
1,304.68

66.37
(3.61)
62.76

B) CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant and equipment
Investment in deposits

(435.66)
(5.00)

(92.13)
-

Net Cash used in investing activities (B)

Operating profit before working capital changes
Adjustment for :
Decrease in trade payables
Increase in other financial liabilities
Increase in other non-financial liabilities
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables
Increase in other financial assets
Increase in other non financial assets
Increase in inventories
Increase in right of use assets
Cash from operations
Income taxed paid ( net of refund received)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A)

(440.66)

(92.13)

C) CASH FLOW FROM FINANCE ACTIVITIES
Issue of share capital
Loan received
Loan paid
Interest received
Interest paid

2,185.00
(144.76)
1.75
(2.04)

525.00
97.34
0.54
(3.19)

Net cash generated from financing activities (C)

2,039.95

619.69

D) Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)
E) Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year
F) Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year

2,903.97
609.43
3,513.40

590.32
19.11
609.43

Year ended 31 March 2020
0.02

Year ended 31 March 2019
0.10

3,513.38

609.33

3,513.40

609.43

Cash and cash equivalents comprises:
Particulars

(a) Cash on hand
(a) Balances with bank

As per our report of even date
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Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001035N/N500050

AKSHAY
MAHESHWARI

Digitally signed by AKSHAY
MAHESHWARI
Date: 2020.05.21 20:57:05 +05'30'

For and on behalf of the board for Rapipay Fintech Private limited

Digitally signed by

ANKIT
ANKIT
GHANSHYA GHANSHYAM
LAHOTI
M LAHOTI Date: 2020.05.21
18:18:48 +05'30'

YOGENDRA
SINGH
KASHYAP

Digitally signed by YOGENDRA SINGH
KASHYAP
DN: c=IN, o=Personal,
postalCode=110017, st=DELHI,
serialNumber=03a71e35203eefe2d7c
358d49f95704041832c9f0fa8e7ed0b3
aaee4c7796337, cn=YOGENDRA
SINGH KASHYAP
Date: 2020.05.21 18:27:13 +05'30'

Akshay Maheshwari

Ankit Ghanshayam Lahoti

Yogendra Singh Kashyap

Partner
Membership No. : 504704
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 21, 2020

Whole Time Director
DIN NO : 06972570
Place : Mumbai
Date : May 21, 2020

Managing Director
DIN NO : 00755017
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 21, 2020

SUMIT KUMAR
CHOUDHARY

Digitally signed by SUMIT KUMAR CHOUDHARY
DN: c=IN, o=Personal, postalCode=110070, st=Delhi,
2.5.4.20=f1d72411960aee289e2b48d83020ccb23372
a5e06dd5ea1c28aa19cbe122b6ff,
serialNumber=0a4a12c8ce279cf5c228b8c700d390db
b789eb51621438877aa910f2016b89ed, cn=SUMIT
KUMAR CHOUDHARY
Date: 2020.05.21 18:45:35 +05'30'

Sumit Kumar Choudhary
Chief Financial Officer
PAN No. : ACVPC3264D
Place : Noida
Date : May 21, 2020

POOJA
CHUGH

Digitally signed by
POOJA CHUGH
Date: 2020.05.21
18:14:32 +05'30'

Pooja Chugh
Company Secretary
Membership No. : A46833
Place : New Delhi
Date : May 21, 2020

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
Equity share capital
Amount
Issued subscribed and fully paid up
Balance at April 1, 2018
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2019
Changes in equity share capital during the year
Balance at March 31, 2020

610.00
525.00
1,135.00
2,185.00
3,320.00

Other equity
Amount
(67.16)

Balance as at March 31, 2018
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Loss for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2019
Restated balance at the beginning of the reporting period
Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year before income tax
Less: Income tax on other comprehensive income
Total comprehensive income for the year
Balance as at March 31, 2020
As per our report of even date
For B.R.Maheswari & Co.
Chartered Accountants
FRN : 001035N/N500050
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(67.16)
(300.78)
(367.94)
(367.94)
(1,027.94)
2.29
(0.60)
1.69
(1,394.19)
For and on behalf of the board for Rapipay Fintech Private limited
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RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
3 Property, plant and equipment
As at March 31, 2020
Furniture &
Office
Leasehold Computer &
fixtures
equipments improvements printers
1.05
1.24
1.47
45.69
36.77
175.78
44.09
46.74
38.01
175.78
45.56

At cost at the beginning of the year
Additions
Disposals
At cost at the end of the year
Accumulated depreciation
beginning of the year

as

at

As at March 31, 2019
Furniture &
Office
Computer &
fixtures
equipments
printers
3.76
0.39
0.03
302.33
0.66
1.21
1.47
306.09
1.05
1.24
1.47

Total

-

-

-

Total
0.42
3.34
3.76

the

0.10

0.34

-

0.27

0.71

-

Depreciation for the period
Disposals
Accumulated depreciation as at the end of
the year
Net carrying amount as at the end of the
year

5.38
5.48

8.38
8.72

20.71
20.71

8.87
9.14

43.34
44.05

0.10
0.10

0.34
0.34

0.27
0.27

0.71
0.71

41.26

29.29

155.07

36.42

262.04

0.95

0.90

1.20

3.05

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
4 Other intangible assets
As at March 31, 2020
Computer softwares
Total

As at March 31, 2019
Computer softwares
Total

At cost, beginning of the year
Additions
Total cost
Accumulated amortization
At beginning of the year
Amortization
Total amortization and impairment

201.86
132.24
334.10

201.86
132.24
334.10

137.63
64.23
201.86

137.63
64.23
201.86

25.32
40.99
66.31

25.32
40.99
66.31

25.32
25.32

25.32
25.32

Net carrying amount

267.79

267.79

176.54

176.54

89.80

89.80

88.71

88.71

Intangible assets under development

4A Right of use assets

Gross carrying value
Additions
Total gross carrying value
Accumulated amortization
At beginning of the year
Amortization
Total amortization
Net carrying amount

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Building
60.86
60.86
361.43
422.29
60.86
56.35
51.65
108.00
314.29

29.30
27.05
56.35
4.51

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Lease deposit
1.06
1.06
6.34
7.40
1.06
1.01
1.11
2.12
5.28

0.52
0.49
1.01
0.05

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
5

Trade receivable
Particualars
Receivables other than above
a) Secured, considered good ;
b) Unsecured, considered good; and
c) Doubtful
Subtotal (a+b+c)
Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
Net receviables
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current

231.25
13.12
244.37
(13.12)
231.25

-

5.73
27.85
33.58
(27.85)
5.73

-

296.61
296.61
296.61

-

231.25

-

5.73

-

296.61

-

6 Advances
Particulars
a) Advances to related parties
- Secured, considered good
- Unsecured, considered good
- Doubtful
Less: Allowance for credit losses
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current
3.09
3.09

-

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current
134.87
(134.87)
-

-

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current
134.87
134.87

-

7 Other financial assets
Particulars
Financial assets at amortised cost
Security deposit
Advance Paid to Staff
Advance to service providers
Other advances
Interest accrued but not due
Other financial assets
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current
4.91
25.79
14.80
0.29
18.02
63.81

16.76
16.76

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current
3.74
26.14
14.80
44.68

5.61
5.61

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current
0.55
24.97
3.05
28.57

6.93
6.93

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
8 Deferred tax assets (net)
Particulars
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) net
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtful debts
Amortization adjustment on lease deposits
Ind AS 116 adjustment
Carry forward losses
Provision for gratuity
Provision for leave encashment
Deferred tax liabilities
Interest adjustments on lease deposits
Depreciation
Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) net
Movement in net deferred tax asset during the year
Mat credit entitlement

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 01, 2018

42.31
0.55
2.02
461.83
1.82
2.08

41.90
0.26
0.12
123.07
0.97
0.65

0.13
0.49
71.66
-

(0.50)
(35.50)
474.61

(0.26)
(29.81)
136.90

(0.13)
(8.06)
64.09

337.71
11.06
485.67

72.81
11.06
147.96

64.09
11.06
75.15

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 01, 2018

195.10
195.10

9.79
9.79

6.18
6.18

9 Current tax assets (net)
Particulars
Current tax assets
Advance tax and tax deducted at source
Total

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
10 Other assets ( non financial)
Particulars
Capital advances
GST Input credit
Prepaid expenses
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current
7.70
91.47
3.87
95.34
7.70

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current
18.56
18.56
-

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current
15.34
15.34
-

As at March 31, 2020
11.56
11.56

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 01, 2018

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019

11 Inventories
Particulars
Stock-in-trade of goods acquired for trading
Total Inventories

5.61
5.61

-

12 Cash and cash equivalents
Particulars
(a) Cash on hand
(b) Balances with bank
- Current account
- in fixed deposits with original maturity less than 3 months
(c ) Other balances with bank
- Escrow account*
- Balance with non schedule bank
Total (a+b+c)

As at April 01, 2018

0.02

0.10

0.71

1,926.54
675.00

570.76
13.50

17.72
-

6.56
905.28

7.70
17.37

0.68
-

3,513.40

609.43

19.11

*The balance in Yes bank escrow account is maintained as per the guidelines of Reserve Bank of India for operating of semi closed Prepaid Payment Instruement and can
be used only for the specified purposes.
13 Other bank balances
Particulars
Fixed deposit with original maturity more than 3 months
Total

As at March 31, 2020

As at March 31, 2019
5.00
5.00

As at April 01, 2018
-

-

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)

14 Equity share capital
Particulars

As at March 31, 2020

Authorised share capital
Opening
11,350,000 (7,000,000 & 7,000,000) equity share of Rs. 10
each
Increased during the year
28,650,000 (4,350,000 & Nil) equity share of Rs. 10 each
Outstanding at the end of year
40,000,000 (11,350,000 & 7,000,000) equity share of Rs. 10
each
Issued Subscribed & fully paid
Opening balance
11,350,000 (6,100,000 & 6,100,000) equity share of Rs. 10
each
Issued during the year
21,850,000 (5,250,000 & NIL ) equity share of Rs. 10 each
Outstanding at the end of year
33,200,000 (11,350,000 & 6,100,000) equity share of Rs. 10
each

As at March 31, 2019

As at April 01, 2018

1,135.00

700.00

700.00

2,865.00

435.00

4,000.00

1,135.00

700.00

1,135.00

610.00

610.00

2,185.00

525.00

-

3,320.00

1,135.00

610.00

-

14.1 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company

Name of shareholder

Capital India Finance Limited
Rapipay Fintech Holding Private Limited
Capital India Corp LLP
Ms. Rekha kashyap
Mr. Yogendra singh kashyap

March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019
No. of
% of Total
No. of
% of Total
Shares held
paid- up
Shares held
paid- up
Equity
Equity
Shares
Shares
12,000,000
8,850,000
8,475,000
2,350,000
1,525,000

36.14
26.66
25.53
7.07
4.60

5,250,000
2,075,000
2,350,000
1,525,000

46.26
18.28
20.70
13.44

Note : Capital India Finance Limited through its subsidary, Rapipay Fintech Holding Private limited, holds 62.80% (No.of shares 2,08,49,997) in the
Company.
Equity shares have a par value of Rs 10. They entitle the holder to participate in dividends and to share in the proceeds of winding up the Company in
proportion to the number of and amounts paid on the shares held.
Every holder of equity shares present at a meeting in person or by proxy, is entiteled to one vote, and upon a poll each share is entitled to one vote.

15 Other equity
Particulars
Opening balance
Loss for the year after income tax
Closing balance

As at March 31, 2020
(367.94)
(1,026.25)
(1,394.19)

As at March 31, 2019
(67.16)
(300.78)
(367.94)

As at April 01, 2018
(14.62)
(52.54)
(67.16)

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
16 Borrowings
Non current borrowing
Particulars
Unsecured (Carried at amortised cost)
From directors *
From related party **
Total

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
-

134.76
10.00
144.76

36.95
10.47
47.42

* Loan from director was for a period of 60 months @ 14 % per year , however it was repaid in the year ended March 31, 2020.
** Loan from related party was repaid in the year ended March 31, 2020.
17 Trade payables
Particulars
Trade payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Other payables
(i) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
Total

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019 As at April 01, 2018
11.73

14.44

153.09

44.81

52.91

9.63

56.54

67.35

162.72

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
18 Other financial liabilities
Particulars
Carried at amortized cost :
Lease liability
Creditors for capital goods
Advances from channel partner
Others*
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current

77.47
1.05
2,514.41
536.01

248.80
-

4.95
112.51
11.39

-

28.51
26.21

4.95
-

3,128.94

248.80

128.85

-

54.72

4.95

* Others includes amounts receipt form our channel partner yet to be credited to them
19 Provisions
Particulars
Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity
Provision for compensated absence
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current

0.05
3.61

7.01
8.00

0.01
0.97

3.76
1.56

-

-

3.66

15.01

0.98

5.32

-

-

20 Other liabilities ( non financial)
Particulars
Advances received from customers
Statutory dues payable
Total

As at March 31, 2020
Current
Non- current
189.12
189.12
-

As at March 31, 2019
Current
Non- current
0.16
5.75
5.75
0.16

As at April 01, 2018
Current
Non- current
0.10
4.31
4.31
0.10

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
21 Revenue from operations
Particulars
Commission income
Commission income
Commission distributed to channel partners
Total commision income (a)
Other services income
Sale of digital products/ services
Service charges
Net other services income (b)
Sale of devices (c )
Revenue from opertions (a+b+c = d )
Other operating revenue
Service activation income
Other miscellaneous income
Total operating revenue
Total

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019

6,906.34
(6,310.76)

74.79
(55.36)

595.58

19.43

1,928.49
(1,817.33)

42.03
(35.92)

111.16

6.11

41.01

4.48

747.75

30.02

44.63
0.37
45.00

-

792.75

30.02

22 Other income
Particulars
(a) Interest income on FD
- On Financial assets measured at amortised cost
(b) Interest income on lease deposit
(c) Sundry balance written back
(d) Other non operating income
Total

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019
0.52
0.94
0.07
1.53

0.03
0.51
43.12
43.66

RAPIPAY FINTECH PRIVATE LIMITED
Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(All figures are in lakhs, except otherwise stated)
23 Cost of materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchase
Less: Closing stock
Total

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019
5.61
41.70
9.55
47.31
9.55
11.56
5.61
35.75
3.94

24 Employee benefits expense
Particulars
Salaries and wages including bonus
Contribution to provident and other funds
Leave encashment
Gratuity expenses
Staff welfare expenses
Total

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019
1,097.58
102.69
1.94
0.84
9.08
2.53
5.58
3.77
11.19
2.60
1,125.37
112.43

25 Finance cost
Particulars
Interest on loans (financial liabilities at amortised cost)
Interest on lease liability
Total

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019
2.04
3.19
18.88
1.49
20.92
4.68

26 Other expenses
Particulars
Rent
Rate, fee & taxes
Repairs & maintenance
Office expenses
Electricity charges
Communication expenses
Bank charges
Printing & stationery
Insurance
Membership & subscription
Travelling & conveyance
Advertisement, marketing & business promotion expenses
Commission & brokerage
Auditor's remuneration
Legal & professional charges
Allowance for doubtful debts, loans & advances (Net)
Sms service charges
Directors sitting fees
License fees
Server maintenance
Miscellaneous expenses
Total

Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019
19.00
0.82
28.52
7.02
8.44
2.46
16.88
4.02
9.01
6.51
10.12
1.77
321.46
4.85
4.10
0.78
0.08
0.07
0.05
132.54
14.00
19.07
0.14
1.26
0.16
3.68
0.85
169.29
37.91
13.12
162.72
11.71
2.00
3.35
2.50
45.86
24.98
21.84
1.11
841.40
272.65

1

Corporate Information
Rapipay Fintech Private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private company domiciled in India and incorporated on
6th April 2009 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The Company has received a Certificate of
Registration number 126/2017 dated 25th January 2018 from the Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’) to carry on the
business of Semi to Setup & operate Semi Closed Prepaid Instrument Services. The Company operates on a
B2B2C model, where it partners with it’s “RapiPay saathi’s” to offer assisted digital services such as Aadhaar
Enabled Payment Systems (AEPS), Domestic Money Transfer, Micro- ATM.
The Company’s registered office is situated at New Delhi, India, while its corporate office is located in Noida,
India.
These financial statements are approved and adopted by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting
dated May 21, 2020.

2

Significant accounting Policies

2.1 Basis of Preparation of financial statements
A) Statement of Compliance
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind
AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ( ‘the Act’) read with Companies ( Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time and other relevant provisions of the Act.
Any directions issued by the RBI or other regulators are implemented as and when they become applicable.
The Company has adopted lnd AS from April 1, 2019 and the financial statements for the year ended March
31, 2020 are the Company’s first Ind AS Financial Statements. However, the effective date of transition to
Ind AS is April 1, 2018, being the beginning of the earliest period for which the company needs to present
comparative information.
The transition to Ind AS has been carried out from the erstwhile Accounting Standards notified under the
Act, read with relevant rules issued thereunder, guidelines issued by the RBI and other generally accepted
accounting principles in India (collectively referred to as 'the Previous GAAP'). The impact of transition has
been recorded in the opening reserves as at April 1, 2018 and is provided in Note 37. The corresponding
comparative previous period as presented in these financial results have been restated / reclassified in order
to conform to current period presentation.
The adoption of Ind AS has been carried out in accordance with Ind AS 101 First time adoption of Indian
Accounting Standards. An explanation of how the transition to Ind AS has affected the previously reported
financial position, financial performance and cash flows of the Company is provided in Note 37.
The accounting policies are applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements,
including the preparation of the opening Ind AS Balance Sheet as at April 1, 2018 being the ‘date of
transition to Ind AS’.
B) Functional and presentation currency
The Company’s presentation and functional currency is Indian Rupees. All figures appearing in the financial
statements are in Indian rupee, unless otherwise indicated.
C) Basis of preparation, presentation and disclosure of financial statements

The financial statements have been prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis, modified to
include the fair valuation of certain financial instruments, to the extent required or permitted under Ind AS
as set out in the relevant accounting policies. All Assets and liabilities are presented in order of liquidity of
line items on the face of financial statements. Further, Assets and liabilities are classified as per the normal
operating cycle (determined at 12 months) and other criteria set out in Schedule III of the Act.
D) Use of judgment and Estimates
The preparation of the financial statements requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions in the application of accounting policies that affects the reported amount of assets, liabilities
and the accompanying disclosures along with contingent liabilities as at the date of financial statements and
revenue & expenses for the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management’s best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in
outcomes different from the estimates. Difference between actual results and estimates are recognised in the
period in which the results are known or materialise i.e. prospectively.
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The key
areas involving estimation uncertainty, higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where
assumptions are significant to the financial statements include:
i)
Measurement of credit impairment charges for amortised cost assets,
ii)
Effective interest rate
iii)
Business model assessment
iv)
Provisions and Contingencies
v)
Useful life and expected residual value of assets
vi)
Fair value measurement of financial assets
vii)
Recognition of deferred tax assets/liabilities
viii)
Measurement of Defined Benefit Obligations and actuarial assumptions.
E) Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received on sale of an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its absence, the most
advantageous market to which the Company has access at that date.
The best estimate of the fair value of a financial instrument on initial recognition is normally the transaction
price. If the Company determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price
and the fair value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability
nor based on a valuation technique that uses only data from observable markets, then the financial instrument
is initially measured at fair value, adjusted to defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition
and the transaction price. Subsequently that difference is recognised in statement of profit and loss on an
appropriate basis over the life of the instrument but no later than when the valuation is wholly supported by
observable market data or the transaction is closed out.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 - Valuation using quoted market price in active markets: The fair value for financial instruments
traded in active markets at the reporting date is based on their quoted market price, without any deduction
for transaction costs. A market is regarded as active, if transactions for the asset or liability take place with
sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.
• Level 2 - Valuation using observable inputs: If there is no quoted price in an active market, then the
Company uses valuation techniques that maximise the use of relevant observable inputs and minimise the

use of unobservable inputs. The chosen valuation technique incorporates most of the factors that market
participants would take into account in pricing a transaction.
• Level 3 - Valuation with significant unobservable inputs: The valuation techniques are used only when fair
value cannot be determined by using observable inputs. The Company regularly reviews significant
unobservable inputs and valuation adjustments. Level 3 assets are typically very illiquid, and fair values can
only be calculated using estimates.
The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs.
F) Effective interest Rate (EIR) method
Effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees or
other income received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the debt instrument, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. Interest Income is recognised on EIR basis for debt
instruments other than those classified as at FVTPL and credit impaired assets.
G) First-time adoption of Ind AS – mandatory exceptions and optional exemptions
Overall Principle:
The Company has prepared the opening balance sheet as per Ind AS as of 1st April 2018 (“the transition
date”) by recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, not recognising items
of assets or liabilities which are not permitted by Ind AS, by reclassifying items from Previous GAAP to Ind
AS as required under Ind AS, and applying Ind AS in measurement of recognised assets and liabilities.
However, this principle is subject to certain exceptions and certain optional exemptions availed by the
Company as mentioned below:
Deemed cost for property, plant and equipment and intangible assets –
The Company has elected to measure property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets at its Previous
GAAP carrying amount and use that Previous GAAP carrying amount as its deemed cost at the date of
transition to IND AS i.e. 01st April 2018..

2.2

Financial Instruments
a) Recognition and initial measurement –
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provision of the instruments.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets
and financial liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction cost directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in Statement of
profit and loss.
b) Classification and Subsequent measurement of financial assets –
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at

-

Amortised cost
FVOCI – debt instruments
FVOCI – equity instruments
FVTPL

Amortised cost - The Company’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-instrument basis, but
at a higher level of aggregated portfolios being the level at which they are managed. The financial asset is
held with the objective to hold financial asset in order to collect contractual cash flows as per the contractual
terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding. Accordingly, the Company measures Bank balances, Loans, Trade
receivables and other financial instruments at amortised cost.
FVOCI - debt instruments - The Company measures its debt instruments at FVOCI when the instrument is
held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows
and selling financial assets; and the contractual terms of the financial asset meet the SPPI test.
FVOCI - equity instruments - The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss, unless the Company’s management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its
equity instruments at FVOCI, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 Financial
Instruments and are not held for trading.
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.
All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL. This
includes all derivative financial assets.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets
Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of profit and loss. Any gain and loss on derecognition is
recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
Debt investment at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI. On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are
reclassified to Statement of profit and loss.
For equity investments, the Company makes an election on an instrument-by-instrument basis to designate
equity investments as measured at FVOCI. These elected investments are measured at fair value with gains
and losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the reserves. The cumulative gain or loss is not reclassified to Statement of profit and loss on disposal of the
investments. These investments in equity are not held for trading. Instead, they are held for strategic purpose.
Dividend income received on such equity investments are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
Equity investments that are not designated as measured at FVOCI are designated as measured at FVTPL and
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
c)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments:

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability
and an equity instrument.
Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities.
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading or it is a derivative (that does not meet hedge accounting
requirements) or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Other financial liabilities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in profit or
loss.
d) Derecognition of financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial
asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of
the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Company recognises
its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for the amount it may have to pay.
If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but retains
either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets are not
derecognised and the proceeds received are recognised as a collateralised borrowing.
e)

Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.3

Cash and Cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand, bank balances, demand deposits with banks and other short
term deposits which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
change in value and have original maturities of less than or equal to three months. These balances with banks are
unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.
Other bank balances includes balances and deposits with banks that are restricted for withdrawal and usage.
Statement of Cash Flow
Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or payments. The
cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are segregated.

2.4

Property, plant and equipment
a) Recognition and Measurement

Tangible property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if
any. The cost of property, plant and equipment comprise purchase price and other non-refundable taxes or
levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet
date is classified as capital advances under other non-financial assets and the cost of assets not put to use
before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital work-in-progress’.
An item of PPE is de-recognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the assets. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of
PPE, is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in the Statement of profit and loss.
The residual values and useful lives and method of depreciation of PPE are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively.
b) Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Company. Expenditure incurred after the PPE have been put into operations,
such as repairs and maintenance expenses are charged to the Statement of profit and loss during the period
in which they are incurred.
c)

Depreciation, estimated useful lives and residual value
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to write down the cost of property and equipment
to their residual values over their estimated useful lives as prescribed in Part C of Schedule II to the
Companies Act 2013. The estimated lives used and differences from the lives prescribed under Schedule II
are noted in the table below:Type of Assets
Computers
Software
and
system
development
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Leasehold improvements

Estimated useful life as assessed by
the Company
3 years
10 years & 6 years

Estimated useful life under
Schedule II of the Act
3 years
3 years

3 years
10 years & 6 years
Tenure of lease agreements

5 years
10 years
Tenure of lease agreements

Depreciation is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from the month in which asset is ready for use. Individual
assets costing less than or equals to Rs. 5,000 are depreciated in full, in the year of purchase. Depreciation
on assets sold during the year is recognised on a pro-rata basis in the Statement of Profit and Loss up to the
month prior to the month in which the assets have been disposed off.
Changes in the expected useful life are accounted for by changing the depreciation period or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.
2.5

Intangible assets
Intangible assets comprises of computer software are capitalised at cost of acquisition including cost
attributable to readying the asset for use. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. The useful life of these intangible assets
is estimated at 3 years with zero residual value. Any expenses on such software for support and maintenance
payable annually are charged to the statement of profit and loss.
Internally generated computer software

Development costs that are directly attributable the design and testing of identifiable and unique software
products controlled by the Company are recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria are met:
It is technically feasible to complete the software so that it will be available for use.
Management intends to complete the software and use or sell it.
There is an ability to use or sell the software.
It can be demonstrated how the software will generate probable future economic benefits.
Adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the
software are available and
The expenditure attributable to the software during its development can be reliably measured.
Directly attributable costs that are capitalized as part of the software include employee costs and an
appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible assets and amortized from the point at which the
asset is available for use.
2.6

Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying values of assets at each balance sheet date are reviewed for impairment, if any indication of
impairment exists. If the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, impairment
is recognised for such excess amount in statement of profit and loss. Recoverable amount is the greater of the
net selling price and value in use. If at the reporting date, there is an indication that a previously assessed
impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the impairment losses previously
recognized are reversed such that the asset is recognized at its recoverable amount but not exceeding written
down value which would have been reported if the impairment losses had not been recognized initially.

2.7

Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets
The Company recognises a provision when there is a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. The amount
recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at
the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company determines the level of provision by
discounting the expected cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision
due to the passage of time is recognised as finance cost.
In cases where the available information indicates that the loss on the contingency is reasonably possible but
the amount of loss cannot be reasonably estimated, a disclosure is made in the financial statements.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. If it is
no longer probable that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is
reversed.
Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible obligation arising from past events, the existence
of which will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the company or a present obligation that may arises from past events but
probably will not require an outflow of resource to settle the obligation.
When there is a possible obligation or a present obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of
resource is remote, no provision or disclosure is made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed in the financial statements.
2.8

Foreign exchange transactions and translations
a) Initial recognition: Transactions in foreign currencies are recognised at the prevailing exchange rates
between the reporting currency and a foreign currency on the transaction date.
b) Conversion: Transactions in currencies other than Company’s functional currency are recorded on initial
recognition using the exchange rate at the transaction date. At each balance sheet date, foreign currency
monetary items are reported at the prevailing closing spot rate. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are generally recognised in Statement of profit and loss.
Non-monetary assets and liabilities are carried at historical cost using exchange rates as on the date of the
respective transactions and are not retranslated at the reporting date.

2.9

Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company
and the revenue can be reliably measured and there exists reasonable certainty of its recovery.
Revenue is recognized on completion of provision of services. Prepaid Sale includes sale of prepaid
electronic mobile recharge vouchers/pins, money remittance services, Aadhar Enabled Payment Systems
(AEPS), Micro – ATM and other E-services purchased from services operators at discounted rates.
Revenue, net of discount, from sale of electronic recharge vouchers/pins is recognized on transfer of all
significant risks and rewards to the customer and when no significant uncertainty exist regarding
realization of consideration.
Fees from money remittance services, AEPS, Micro- ATM and other E-services is recognized on accrual
basis after completion of service delivery.
Interest income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is disclosed as interest income
within other income. Interest income on financial assets at amortised costs and financial assets at FVOCI
is calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the statement of profit and loss as part of
other income.
a) Net gain/ Loss on fair value changes
Any differences between the fair values of the financial assets classified as fair value through the profit or
loss, held by the Company on the balance sheet date is recognised as an unrealised gain/loss in the
statement of profit and loss. In cases there is a net gain in aggregate, the same is recognised in “Net gains
on fair value changes” under income and if there is net loss in aggregate, the same is recognised in "Net
loss on fair value changes" under expense in the statement of profit and loss.

2.10

Employee benefits
Short term employee benefits
Employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering the service are classified as short
term employee benefits and are expensed in the period in which the employee renders the related service.
Liabilities recognised in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount
of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service.
Long Term employee benefits
Company’s net obligation in respect of long-term employee benefits is the amount of future benefit that
employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. Long-term employee benefit
primarily consists of Leave encashment benefits wherein employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject
to certain limits for future encashment/availment. Long-term compensated absences are provided for on the
basis of an actuarial valuation at the end of each financial year using Projected Unit Credit (PUC) Method.
Actuarial gains/losses, if any, are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss
Post-employment benefits
a)

Defined contribution Plans
Provident fund: Contributions as required under the statute, made to the Provident Fund (Defined
Contribution Plan) are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. There is no obligation
other than the monthly contribution payable to the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner.
ESIC and Labour welfare fund: The Company’s contribution paid/payable during the year to
Employee state insurance scheme and Labour welfare fund are recognised in the statement of profit and
loss.

b) Defined benefit Plans
Gratuity liability is defined benefit obligation and is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation
performed by an independent actuary based on projected unit credit method, at the end of each financial
year.
Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:
i) Service cost (including current service cost, past service cost, as well as gains and losses on
curtailments and settlements)
ii) Net interest expense or income
iii) Re-measurement
Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the
return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest),
are recognised in OCI, net of taxes. The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the
net defined benefit liability (asset) for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the
defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the net defined benefit liability (asset),
taking into account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit
plans are recognised in statement of profit and loss.
The Company’s net obligation in respect of gratuity (defined benefit plan), is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefit that the employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting
that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets. The retirement benefit obligation recognised

in the Balance Sheet represents the actual deficit or surplus in the company’s defined benefit plans. Any
surplus resulting from this calculation is recognised as an asset to the extent of present value of any
economic benefits available in the form of refunds from the plans or reductions in the future contribution
to the plans.
2.11

Finance cost
Finance costs include interest expense computed by applying the effective interest rate on respective
financial instruments measured at Amortised cost.

2.12

Leases
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019.The
Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and buildings. The Company, at the
inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange for a
consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or after April 1, 2019.
The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.
The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change
in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if
the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the
right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.
The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets The Company recognises the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.
The Company has not considered extension-options under the commercial contract for determining the
lease-term which forms the basis for the measurement of right-of-use asset and the corresponding leaseliability.

2.13

Income Tax
Income tax expense comprises of current tax and deferred tax. It is recognised in Statement of profit and
loss except to the extent that it relates to an item recognised directly in equity or in other comprehensive
income.
a)

Current tax:
Current tax comprises of the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of earlier years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount to be paid, measured in accordance with the tax rates and tax laws

that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period. Current tax items are
recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the statement of profit and loss, other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or payable
to the taxation authorities.
b) Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax is recognised using the Balance Sheet method on temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the
reporting date.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates and tax laws that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets are
reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in the statement of
profit and loss, other comprehensive income or directly in equity.
Any change in the deferred taxes due to a change in tax rates is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period of enactment of the change.
Tax assets and tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle the asset and the liability on a net basis. Deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off tax assets against
tax liabilities.
Minimum Alternate Tax (MAT) credit entitlement (i.e. excess of amount of MAT paid for a year over
normal tax liability for that year) eligible for set-off in subsequent years is recognised as an asset in
accordance with Ind AS 12, Income Taxes, if there is convincing evidence of its realisation.
MAT credit is created by way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the
same at each balance sheet date and writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the
extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that Company will pay normal income-tax
during the specified period.
2.14

Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year.
For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

2.15

Segment reporting

The Chief Operational Decision Maker monitors the operating results of its business Segments separately
for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment
performance is evaluated based on profit and loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the
financial statements.
The company is predominantly engaged in Business correspondence services, whose revenue and operating
income are reviewed regularly by Chief Operating Decision Maker. As such there are no separate reportable
segments as per Ind-AS 108
2.16

Operating cycle for current and non-current classification
Based on the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months
for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

2.17

Recent accounting pronouncements: Standards issued but not effective on balance sheet date
As on date no such standards need to recheck at year end

Note : 27 Income tax cases
In case of AY 2013-14 the AO had computed a tax liability of Rs.2,52,47,840 against which the company had filed an appeal with CIT (A). The
CIT ( A) vide order dated 16th april 2019 had decided the case in favour of the Company . The Income tax department had filed the case with
ITAT, and the matter is pending at ITAT. The management of the Company believes the chances of any liability arising out of the case against the
Company is remote.
In case of AY 2015-16 the AO had computed a tax liability of Rs 16,06,690 against which the company had filed an appeal with CIT (A). The CIT
(A) vide order dated 8th july 2019 had decided the case in favour of the Company . The Income tax department had filed the case with ITAT, and
the matter is pending at ITAT. The management of the Company believes the chances of any liability arising out of the case against the Company is
remote.
Note : 28 Employee benefits
Defined Contribution Plan - Provident Fund (PF) Contribution
The Company makes contributions towards PF, in respect of qualifying employees. The amount recognised as an expense and included in Note-24
“Employee Benefits Expenses” under the head “Contribution to Provident and Other Funds” are as under.

Particulars
Employer’s contribution to provident fund

FY 2019-20
1.27

(Rs in lakhs)
FY 2018-19
0.64

Defined Benefit Plan - Gratuity
The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan, under which every employee who has completed atleast five years of service gets a gratuity on
departure @15 days of last drawn basic salary for each completed year of service.
The estimates of the future salary increases, considered in acturial valuaon, include inflaon, seniority, promoon and other relevant factors such as
supply and demand in the employment market. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yield on government securies as at the balance
sheet date for the estimated average remaining service.
The disclosure as required by Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) -19 “Employee Benefits” is as under.
Particulars
I. Assumption
Mortality rate
Interest / Discount rate
Rate of increase in compensation
Expected average remaining service
II. Reconciliation of net defined benefit asset/(liability)
Opening defined benefit Obligation
Interest cost
Current service cost
Past service cost (vested benefits)
Actuarial gains
Closing defined benefit obligation
III. Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation
Due to financial assumption
Net actuarial Gain on obligation
IV. Net Interest
Interest income
Net interest income
V. Expenses recognised in profit and loss account under
Current service cost
Net interest expense
Expenses recognised in profit and loss account
VI. Remeasurements recognised in other comprehensive income
Net actuarial (gain)/ loss on obligation
Total Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognised in OCI
VII. Others
Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation
Projected Service Cost

As at March 31, 2020
IALM 2012-14
6.00 % per annum
5.00%
28.1 Years

(Rs in lakhs)
As at March 31, 2019
100% of IALM 2006-08
7.70%
15.00%
26.61 Years

3.77
0.23
5.36
(2.29)
7.07

2.60
1.16
3.76

(2.29)
(2.29)

-

0.23
0.23

-

5.36
0.23
5.59

3.77
3.77

(2.29)
-2.29

-

24
14.41

-

Sensitivity analysis :
Sensitivity analysis for significant actuarial assumptions, showing how the defined benefit obligation would be affected, considering
increase/decrease of 100 basis points as at 31.03.20 is as below :
Particulars
Change in rate of discount rate + 100 basis points
Change in rate of discount rate- 100 basis points
Change in rate of salary escalation Rate + 100 basis points
Change in rate of salary escalation Rate - 100 basis points

As at March 31, 2020
6.85
7.28
7.28
6.85

As at March 31, 2019
3.60
3.94
4.09
3.47

As at March 31, 2020
0.05
0.05
0.12
0.32
0.41
6.11

As at March 31, 2019
0.01
0.01
0.01
0.14
0.45
7.83

The expected payout as at 31st March 2019 are as under:
Particulars
Year 1
Year 2
Year 3
Year 4
Year 5
Year 6 to year ten

Notes:
Since the gratuity plan of the Company is not funded, and hence the disclosure related to plan assets are not applicable.
The company has recognised Rs.3.29 lakh (31st March 2019: Rs. 3.76 lakh ) for compensated absences in Statement of Profit and Loss for current
year. Total provision for compensated absences is Rs. 7.06 lakh as at 31st March 2020 (31st March 2019: Rs.3.77 lakh ).

Note :29 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 108 “Operating Segment”
The company's primary activity falls within a single business and geographical segment. Hence, there are no reportable segments as per IND AS 108
on operating segment.

Note : 30 Related party disclosure
List of Related parties
i) Related party where control exists:
a) Capital india finance limited
b) Rapipay fintech holdings private limited

Holding company
Associate company

ii) Enterprises over which Key Management Personnel (KMP) are able to exercise control /significant influence with whom there were transactions during the
year:
a) Virgo Softech Limited

Enterprise where KMP exercise controlling interest

iii) Other related parties
a) Capital India Corp LLP
b) Sukhdev Singh Kahyap
c) Rekha kashyap
d) Capital India Home Loans Limited
e) CIFL Holdings Private Limited
f) Capital India assets management private Limited
g) CIFL Investment manager Private Limited
h) Capital India wealth management private Limited

Enterprise having significant influence or control
Relative of KMP
Relative of KMP
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary
Fellow Subsidiary

iv) Key Management Personnel
a) Mr. Yogendra Singh kashyap
b) Mr. Ankit Ghanshyam lahoti
c) Mr. Deepak Vaswan
d) Mr. Amit Sahai Kulshrestha
e) Mr. Vineet Kumar Saxena
f) Mr. Yogendra Pal Singh
g) Mr. Vinod Somani
h) Mr. Sumit Choudhary
i) Miss. Pooja Chugh

Managing Director
Whole Time Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Director
Independent Director
Chief Financial Officer
Company Secretary

Details of Related Party Transactions for the Year:
Related party
Capital India Home Loans Limited
Capital India Finance Limited
Rapipay fintech holding private limited
Capital India Corp LLP
Key Management Personnel*
Director

Relative of KMP

Enterprise where KMP exercise controlling interest

Nature of transaction
Reimbursement of expenses
Issue of equity share
Issue of equity share
Issue of equity share
Director sitting fees paid
Salary including perquisites and allowances
Opening balance
Loan repayment
Loan accepted
Interest paid
Loan written back
Advance paid
Closing balance
Opening balance
Loan repayment
Loan written back
Closing balance
Opening balance
Payment received against receivables
Receivable writen off
Closing balance

* Excludes amounts pertaining to gratuity and compensated absences, which are actuarially valued at the company level.

31st March 2020
1.93
847.50
360.00
977.50
2.00
151.41
134.76
146.60
10.00
1.84
3.09
10.00
10.00
-

31st March 2019
52.50
23.25
33.34
6.42
144.02
2.87
39.05
3.09
134.76
10.47
0.47
10.00
431.47
268.76
162.72
-

Note : 31 Income tax expense
a) Tax expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss
Particulars
Deferred Tax:
Deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences
Total Income Tax recognised in profit or loss
Deferred tax

For the Year ended March
31, 2020

Rs in Lakhs
For the Year ended March
31, 2019

338.31

72.81

338.31

72.81

For the Year ended March
31, 2020

Rs in Lakhs
For the Year ended March
31, 2019

b) Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
Particulars
Deferred tax related to items recognised in Other comprehensive income
during the year:
Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Total Income tax recognised in Other comprehensive income

(0.60)
(0.60)

-

c) Reconciliation of effective tax rate :
The reconciliation of estimated income tax expense at tax rate to income tax expense reported in profit or loss is as follows :
Particulars

Profit before income taxes
Enacted tax rate in India (%)
Computed expected tax expenses
Tax effect due to non-taxable income for Indian tax purposes
Tax reversals
Effect of non-deductible expenses
Others
Income Tax expense recognised in profit and loss

Rs in Lakhs
For the Year ended March For the Year ended March
31, 2020
31, 2019
(1,363.96)
(373.59)
26%
26%
(354.63)
(97.13)
17.07
(0.15)
(337.71)

45.23
(20.90)
(72.81)

d) Movement in temporary differences
Particulars
Credit / (Charge) in the Statement of Profit and Loss during the period (a)
Impairment
Amortization adjustment on Lease deposits
Ind AS 116 Adjustment
Carry forward losses
Provisions - employee benefits
Interest adjustments on Lease deposits
Depreciation
Mat credit entilement

For the Year ended March
31, 2020

Rs in Lakhs
For the Year ended March
31, 2019

0.41
0.29
1.90
338.76
2.88
(0.24)
(5.69)
0.00

41.90
0.13
(0.37)
51.41
1.62
(0.13)
(21.75)
0.00

Total (a)
Credit / (Charge) in the other comprehensive income during the period
Provisions - employee benefits

338.31

72.81

(0.60)

-

Total (b)
Net deferred income tax asset at the beginning (c )
Net deferred tax asset/(Liabilities) at the end of the period d) = (a) + (b) + (c)

(0.60)
147.96
485.67

75.15
147.96

Note : 32 Disclosure related to fair value of financial instruments
Accounting classification and fair values
The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial instruments, including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. The Company
has disclosed financial instruments not measured at fair value at carrying values because their carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of the fair
values.
Rs in Lakhs
As at March 31, 2020
FVTPL
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Trade receivables
Loans & advances
Others financial assets
Total
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total

Carrying amount
Amortised cost

Total

Level 1

Fair value hierarchy
Level 2 Level 3

Total

-

3,513.40
5.00
231.25
3.09
80.57
3,833.31

3,513.40
5.00
231.25
3.09
80.57
3,833.31

3,513.40
5.00
231.25
3.09
80.57
3,833.31

-

-

3,513.40
5.00
231.25
3.09
80.57
3,833.31

-

56.54
56.54

56.54
56.54

56.54
56.54

-

-

56.54
56.54
Rs in Lakhs

As at March 31, 2019
FVTPL
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other bank balances
Trade receivables
Loans & advances
Others financial assets
Total
Financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total

Carrying Amount
Amortised Cost

Total

Level 1

Fair value hierarchy
Level 2 Level 3

Total

-

609.43
5.73
50.29
665.45

609.43
5.73
50.29
665.45

609.43
5.73
50.29
665.45

-

-

609.43
5.73
50.29
665.45

-

67.35
144.76
212.11

67.35
144.76
212.11

67.35
144.76
212.11

-

-

67.35
144.76
212.11
Rs in Lakhs

As at 1st April, 2018
FVTPL
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Other Bank Balances
Trade receivables
Loans & Advances
Others financial assets
Total
Financial liabilities
Trade and Other Payables
Borrowings
Other financial liabilities
Total

Carrying Amount
Amortised Cost

Total

Level 1

Fair value hierarchy
Level 2 Level 3

Total

-

19.11
296.61
134.87
35.50
486.09

19.11
296.61
134.87
35.50
486.09

19.11
296.61
134.87
35.50
486.09

-

-

19.11
296.61
134.87
35.50
486.09

-

162.72
47.42
210.14

162.72
47.42
210.14

162.72
47.42
210.14

-

-

162.72
47.42
210.14

Note : 33 Basic and Diluted Earnings per share

Particulars

Basic
Profit after tax (a)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (b)
Basic earning per share (Rs) (a/b)
Diluted
Profit after tax (Rs. In Lakhs) (a)
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding (b)
Diluted earning per share (Rs) (a/b)
Face value of shares (Rs)

Rs in Lakhs
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020
March 31, 2019

(1,026.25)
18,163,836
(5.65)

(300.78)
6,128,767
(4.91)

(1,026.25)
18,163,836
(5.65)
10.00

(300.78)
6,128,767
(4.91)
10.00

Note : 34 Remuneration to Statutory Auditors

Particulars
Payment to auditors (excluding taxes)
a) Statutory Audit Fees
b) Taxation matters (Tax Audit Fees)
c) Certification Fees & Other services
Total

Year ended
31 March 2020
2.00
0.50
1.18
3.68

Rs in Lakhs
Year ended
31 March 2019
0.50
0.35
0.85

Note : 35 Impact of COVID-19 Pandemic
The spread of COVID-19 has severely impacted businesses around the world. In many countries, including India, there has been
severe disruption to regular business operations due to lockdowns, disruptions in transportation, supply chain, travel bans,
quarantines, social distancing and other emergency measures.
The Company has made detailed assessment of its liquidity position for the next 12 months and of the recoverability and carrying
values of its assets comprising Property, Plant and Equipment, Intangible assets and Trade Receivables as at the balance sheet
date, and has concluded that there are no material adjustments required in the financial statements.
Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID 19 pandemic in
the preparation of the financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID 19 is a continuing process given the
uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to future
economic conditions.
Note : 36
The Board of Directors of the Company , in their meeting held on January 27, 2020, have approved the amalgamation of Rapipay
Fintech Holding Private Limited with Rapipay Fintech Private Limited. The Board believes this will simplify the corporate
structure and consolidate its similar businesses under single entity. Further, the Company has filed a first motion application on
March 2, 2020 with National Company Law Tribunal in this respect, under section 230 to 232 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Compromise, Arrangements and Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 and the National
Company Law Tribunal Rules.

Note : 37 First Time adoption of Indian Accounting Standards
Ind AS 101 - First Time adopon of Indian Accounting Standards:
The company has prepared opening Balance Sheet as per Ind AS as of April 01, 2018 (transition date) by
recognising all assets and liabilities whose recognition is required by Ind AS, derecognising items of assets or
liabilities which are not permitted to be recognised by Ind AS, reclassifying items from Previous GAAP to Ind AS
as required, and applying Ind AS to measure the recognised assets and liabilities.
Investments :
Under previous GAAP the company classified its investments into current and non-current, the former being
recorded at the lower of cost and net realisable value and the latter at cost. Provisions were recorded in case of
other than temporary diminution in the value of non-current investments. Under Ind AS, the company has
classified its investments at fair value through profit and loss, which requires remeasurement at fair value at the
balance sheet date and the recording of fair value movements in profit and loss account.
Security deposits :
Previous GAAP did not require the fair valuation of financial instruments at initial recognition. Under Ind AS, the
Company records security deposits provided to landlords at fair value, with corresponding adjustments to interest
expense and depreciation.
Employee defined benefit plans :
Previous GAAP required actuarial experience adjustments relating to defined benefit plans, i.e. gratuity to be
recorded in the profit and loss account. By contrast, under Ind AS, the Company records such adjustments in OCI.

Lease Rent :
Previous GAAP as well as Ind AS 17 require to classify lease as finance lease and operating lease and for
operating leases, lessee is required to recognise the lease payments as an expense (Lease rent) on a straight line
basis.
Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for
all leases with a term of more than 12 months, unless the underlying asset is of low value. A lessee is required to
recognise a right-of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying leased asset and a lease liability
representing its obligation to make lease payments.
Under Ind AS 116, a lessee measures right-of-use assets similarly to other non-financial assets (such as property,
plant and equipment) and lease liabilities similarly to other financial liabilities. As a consequence, a lessee
recognizes depreciation of the right-of-use asset and interest on the lease liability, and also classifies cash
repayments of the lease liability into a principal portion and an interest portion and presents them in the statement
of cash flows applying Ind AS 7, Statement of Cash Flows.
Share-based payment transactions :
Under Previous GAAP, the Company recorded its ESOP grants at intrinsic value while under Ind AS, the grants
are recorded at fair value.
Deferred tax :
Previous GAAP required the recognition of deferred tax on the basis of timing differences, i.e. differences in the
timing of recognising items of income and expense between the books and under Income tax regulations. On the
other hand, under Ind AS, the Company records deferred tax computed on balance sheet basis differences between
the books and under Income tax regulations.
Ind AS 101 exemptions :
The company has used certain available exemptions under Ind AS 101 for first-time adoption, and accordingly has
retained the accounting under Previous GAAP for transactions that occurred prior to the Ind AS transition date.
These optional exemptions relate to property plant and equipment, intangible assets, investment in subsidaries.
Cash flow statement :
There are no significant differences in the principles used for presenting cash flows between the previous GAAP
and Ind AS.

Reconciliation of balance sheet (including equity) as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS
Rs in Lakhs
As at 01 April 2018
Previous GAAP
Adjustment
I
(a)
(b)
(c)
(d)
(e)
(f)
(g)

ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment
Other intangible assets
Intangibles under development
Right of use assets
Financial assets
(i) Other Financial assets
Deferred tax assets (net)
Other non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets
(i) Trade receivables
(ii) Cash and cash equivalents
(iii) Other bank balances
(iv) Advances
(v) Other financial assets
(c) Current tax assets (net)
(d) Other current assets
Total Assets
II EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
EQUITY
(a) Equity share capital
(b) Other equity
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings
(ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Other non-current liabilities
CURRENT LIABILITIES
(a) Financial liabilities
(i) Trade payables
(a) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises
(b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises
(ii) Other financial liabilities
(b) Provisions
(c) Other current liabilities
Total Liabilities and Equity

As at 31st March 2019
Previous GAAP
Adjustment

Ind AS

Ind AS

0.42
137.63
64.15
0.00

32.10

0.42
137.63
64.15
32.10

3.05
176.54
88.71
0.00

4.56

3.05
176.54
88.71
4.56

7.50
74.65
284.35

(0.57)
0.50
32.03

6.93
75.15
316.38

5.67
104.32
378.29

(0.06)
43.64
48.14

5.61
147.96
426.43

-

-

-

296.61
19.11
0.00
134.87
28.57
6.18
15.34
500.68
785.03

32.03

296.61
19.11
0.00
134.87
28.57
6.18
15.34
500.68
817.06

33.58
609.43
0.00
134.87
44.68
9.79
18.56
856.52
1234.81

(27.85)
(134.87)
(162.72)
(114.58)

5.73
609.43
0.00
0.00
44.68
9.79
18.56
693.80
1120.23

610.00
(65.73)
544.27

(1.43)
(1.43)

610.00
(67.16)
542.84

1135.00
(248.41)
886.59

(119.53)
(119.53)

1135.00
(367.94)
767.06

47.42
4.95
0.10
52.47

-

47.42
4.95
0.10
52.47

144.76
5.32
0.16
150.24

-

144.76
5.32
0.16
150.24

-

-

-

-

-

-

162.72

-

162.72

67.35

-

67.35

21.26
4.31
188.29
785.03

33.46
33.46
32.03

54.72
4.31
221.75
817.06

123.90
0.98
5.75
197.98
1234.81

5.61

-

4.95
4.95
(114.58)

5.61

128.85
0.98
5.75
202.93
1120.23

Reconciliation statement of profit and loss as previously reported under IGAAP to Ind AS
For the year ended 31st March 2019
Previous GAAP
Adjustment
Ind AS
1 INCOME
i Revenue from operations
ii Other income
Total income
2 Expenses :
Cost of materials consumed
Employee benefits expenses
Finance costs
Depreciation, amortization and impairment
Others expenses
Total expenses
3 Profit/(loss) before tax
4 Tax Expense:
Current tax
Deferred tax (credit)
Income tax for earlier years
Total tax expense
5 Profit / (loss) for the period from continuing operations

30.02
43.15
73.17

0.51
0.51

30.02
43.66
73.68

3.94
112.43
3.19
26.03
139.93
285.52
(212.35)

1.49
27.54
132.72
161.75
(161.24)

3.94
112.43
4.68
53.57
272.65
447.27
(373.59)

(29.67)

(43.14)

(72.81)

(29.67)
(182.68)

(43.14)
(118.10)

(72.81)
(300.78)

Transition to Ind AS - Reconciliations
Reconciliaon of Equity as at 1st April, 2018
Particulars
Total Equity as per IGAAP
Adjustment made during the transition to IND AS
a)

Fair valuation of security deposit
i) Rental adjustment
i) Interest adjustment
Ind as 116 Adjustment
DTA on the above adjustment
Total Impact due to Ind AS Transion on April 1, 2018
Total Equity as per Ind AS as at 1st April, 2018

b)

Amount
(Rs in lakhs)
544.27

(0.52)
0.50
(1.90)
0.50
(1.42)
542.85

Reconciliation of Total Comprehensive Income for the year ended March 31, 2019
Particulars

1

2
3
3

Profit after Tax as per Old GAAP
Adjustment made during the transition to IND AS
Fair valuation of security deposit
i) Depreciation adjustment
ii) Interest adjustment
Ìnd as 116 Adjustment
Provsion
DTA on the above adjustment
Profit after tax as per Ind AS (Before Other
Comprehensive income)
Other Comprehensive Income (Net of Tax)
Total Comprehensive Income as per Ind AS

Amount
(Rs in lakhs)
(182.68)

(0.49)
0.51
1.46
(162.72)
43.14
(300.78)
(300.78)

Statement of reconciliation of cash flow statement under Ind AS and cash flow statement reported under Previous GAAP

i) Net cash used in operating activities
ii) Net cash used in investing activities
iii) Net cash generated from financing activities
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents (i+ii+iii)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Previous GAAP
60.10
(92.13)
622.34
590.31
19.11
609.42

Adjustment
-

Ind AS
62.76
(92.13)
619.69
590.32
19.11
609.42

Note : 38 Disclosure pursuant to Ind AS 116 "Leases" :
The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April 1, 2019. Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 – Leases and
related interpretation and guidance.
The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the full retrospective approach, and accordingly the comparative information relating to prior years has
been restated.
In adopting Ind AS 116, the Company has applied the below practical expedients:
The Company has applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics
The Company has treated the leases with remaining lease term of less than 12 months as if they were "short term leases"
The Company has not applied the requirements of Ind AS 116 for leases of low value assets (assets of less than Rs. 2 Lakhs in value)
The Company has excluded the initial direct costs from measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of transition
The Company has used hindsight, in determining the lease term if the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease
Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on Balance sheet
Particulars

As at 31 March 2020
319.57
326.27
5.47
4.23
(16.40)

Right of use assets
Lease liabilities
Security Deposit
Derecognition of Lease equalisation reserve
Net Impact

As at 31 March 2019
4.56
4.95
0.06
(0.39)

Rs in Lakhs
As at 1 April 2018
32.10
33.46
0.57
(1.36)

Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on Statement of profit and loss
Particulars
Depreciation on Right of use assets
Interest cost on Lease liability
Interest cost on lease rental Security Deposit
Derecognition of rent
Net Deferred Tax assets impact
Impact on the statement of profit and loss for the
period

Rs in Lakhs
Year Ended March 31, 2020 Year Ended March 31, 2019
52.76
27.54
18.88
1.49
(0.94)
(0.51)
(63.23)
(30.00)
(2.02)
(0.12)
5.45
(1.60)

Impact of adoption of Ind AS 116 on Statement of Cash flows
The adoption of Ind AS 116 resulted in Increase in operating cash flows and decrease in financing cash flows by Rs 63.23 lakh as repayment of the
lease liabilities and related interest will be classified as cash flow from financing activities.
Lease payout obligation ( Undiscounted cashflow)
Particulars
Not later than one year
Later than one year but not later than five year
Later than five years

Year Ended March 31, 2020
72.00
320.40
-

Year Ended March 31, 2019
5.00
-

Note : 39 Fresh issue of equity share capital
During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company had raised funds amounting to Rs.2,185 lakhs through allotment of fresh equity shares. The
Board of Directors of the Company, at its meeting held on below dates and special resolution passed by the members at the Extraordinary General
held on below dates had approved the infusion of share capital.
Capital Infused (in Rs. lakh)
300.00
175.00
60.00
200.00
500.00
400.00
550.00

EGM Meeting Date
21-06-19
16-08-19
11-09-19
NA
12-11-19
30-01-20
20-03-20

Board Meeting Date
21-06-19
20-08-19
12-09-19
10-10-19
27-11-19
27-02-20
31-03-20

Note : 40 Expenditure in foreign currency:

Tour & travelling expenses
Service charge on purchase of forex currency
Purchase of MATM device for testing
Purchase of software
Total

As at
31st March 2020
0.60
0.03
0.37
0.96
1.96

Rs in Lakhs
As at
31st March 2019
-

Amount incurred in foreign currency towards payment of capital advances as on 31st March 2020 - Nil (31st March 2019: Rs. Nil)
Expenses incurred on foreign travel is billed by travel agent to the Company in Indian Rupees and hence not required to be disclosed.
There are no reportable earnings in foreign currency during the year ended 31st March 2020. (31st March 2019: Nil)
The Company does not have any exposures in foreign currency as at the Balance Sheet date.
Note : 41 Details of dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
In terms of notification no. G.S.R 719(E) dated November 16, 2007 issued by the Central Government of India, the disclosure of
payments due to any supplier as at March 31, 2020 are as follows.
Particulars
Balance of Sundry Creditors as at the end of the year
- Principal amount due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
- Principal amount due to Others

Interest accrued and due as at the end of the year
- Interest on payments due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises
- Interest on payments due to Others
- Interest due and payable on amounts paid during the year to Micro,
Small and Medium Enterprises
Paid during the year
Principal amount (including interest) paid to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises beyond the appointed date
- Principal amount
- Interest thereon
Principal amount (excluding interest) paid to Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises beyond the appointed date
Others
- Interest accrued in the prior year and paid during the year
- Interest accrued during the year and paid during the year

31-Mar-20

31-Mar-19

56.54
56.54

31-Mar-18

67.35
67.35

162.72
162.72

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

